
AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
7:00 P.M., JULY 24, 2012 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585

Next Resolution No. PC12-04
1.  ROLL CALL:  

Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 

2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS:

None 

3.  MINUTES:

Approval of June 26, 2012, Planning Commission Minutes. 

4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS:

This is a time for public comments for items that are not listed on this agenda.  Comments should be brief.  If you 
have an item that will require extended discussion, please request the item be scheduled on a future agenda. 

5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:

For each of the following items, the public will be given an opportunity to speak.  After a Staff Report, the Chair 
will open the Public Hearing.  At that time, the applicant will be allowed to make a presentation.  Members of 
the public will then be allowed to speak.  After all have spoken, the applicant is allowed to respond to issues 
raised by the public, after which the Public Hearing is normally closed.  Comments should be brief and to the 
point.  The Chair reserves the right to limit repetitious or non-related comments.  The public is reminded that 
all decisions of the Planning Commission are appealable to the City Council by filing a written Notice of 
Appeal with the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days.

A. CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Suisun City 
Planning Commission to Approve Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-009 for An 
Amusement Center (Blue Devils Bingo Center) within the Marina Shopping Center at 600 Marina 
Center.

�  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC12-___-. 

B. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Suisun City Rescinding Conditional Use 
Permit UP09/10-004 for the Expansion of the Days Out Program at 74/76 Marina Center and 
Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-010 for the relocation of the Days Out 
Day Program to 70/72 Marina Center.) 

�  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC12-___-. 



Planning Commission Agenda 
July 24, 2012 

Page 2 

6.  GENERAL BUSINESS: Action to be taken where appropriate. 

 None 

7.  COMMUNICATION: 

A.  Staff: 

B. Commissioners: 

C. Agenda Forecast 

8.  ADJOURN.
a&m/120724.pca



MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
7:00 P.M., JUNE 26, 2012 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC12-04 
1.  ROLL CALL:   
 
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
 
Absent 
Commissioner Adeva 
 
2.  ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 
 
Commissioner Harris moved to retain the same leadership that we have had the past years.  Commissioner Ramos 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed 6-0 
 
3.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None 
 
4.  MINUTES: 
 
Commissioner Wade moved to approve the May 23, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes. Commissioner Harris 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
5.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None. 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 A. Consideration of a Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission to Approve 

Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-009 for An Amusement Center (Blue Devils Bingo 
Center) within the Marina Shopping Center at 600 Marina Center. 

 
Chairperson Clemente opened the Public Hearing and hearing no comments continued the Public Hearing to the  
July 24th meeting. 
 
7.  GENERAL BUSINESS:  Action to be taken where appropriate. 
 
None 
 
8.  COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
A.  Staff: 
 
Mr. Kearns stated that staff would be seeking direction from the City Council at the July 3rd meeting on the General 
Plan Preferred Land Use Alternative Map. 
 
 



Planning Commission Agenda 
June 26, 2012 

Page 2 
 
 
 

 
Mr. Kearns stated the Grizzly Island Trail Project was moving forward, a consultant had been selected to do a 
survey and that no nesting birds were found.  Ms. Wooden invited the Commissioners to an informal ground 
breaking ceremony at 10:00 am on July 10th.  
 
Mr. Kearns stated that the fireworks stands are installed at the southwest corner of Marina Blvd. and Highway 12, 
Heritage Park Shopping Center, and the Sunset Shopping center.  
 
Ms. Wooden stated that the City has received three inquiries about beekeeping.  She further stated the City does 
have an ordinance with strict restrictions and requires an application.  The applicant also must register with the 
county. 
 
Ms. Wooden stated that Wal-Mart had applied for a grading permit, final mitigation was being  and would be 
starting the grading within the next couple of months. 
 
B.  Commissioners: 
 
Commissioner Harris asked about solar fields within City limits and what state requirements would be.  There was a 
brief discussion among the Commissioners and Ms. Wooden stated that staff had an upcoming conference call with 
PG&E and they could discuss the Commissioners’ inquiries with them. 
 
Commissioner Holzwarth mentioned the timing of the signals along Highway 12.  Ms. Wooden stated that Public 
Works was aware and was working with CalTrans to fix the problems. 
 
Commissioner Ramos mentioned a new business along Main Street, KC Cakes, that had participated in a recent 
event and was curious as to why only certain restaurants were allowed to participate.  Ms. Skinner stated that events 
are open to all restaurants but with the strict restrictions by the County Health Department that many choose not to 
participate. 
 
C.  Agenda Forecast: 

July 24, 2012 
� Continued Public Hearing for the Amusement Center Use Permit 

 
9. ADJOURN.     
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:32 pm. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anita Skinner, Commission Secretary 

 
 
 
 

a&m/120626.pca 



PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner 
REVIEWED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  July 24, 2012 
 
 PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING: Resolution PC12___; A 
Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission to Approve Conditional Use Permit Application 
No. UP11/12-009 for An Amusement Center (Blue Devils Bingo Center) within the Marina Shopping 
Center at 600 Marina Center 
 
APPLICANT: Blue Devils 
   4065 Nelson Avenue 
   Concord, CA 94520 
 
OWNER:   Pellarin Enterprises 
   1520 Main Street 
   Redwood City, CA 94063 
 

SITE DATA: 
 (1) General Plan/Specific Plan: Downtown Waterfront (DW)/General Commercial (GC) 
 (2) Project Configuration: 9,100 square foot tenant space within Marina Shopping Center  
 (3) Surrounding Land Use: 
      North- Vacant (CS) 

South- Residential (RL) 
West- Mobile Home Park (GC) 
East- Vacant (GC) 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: This project is categorically exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15301, Existing Facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The property is zoned for General Commercial use and Marina Shopping 
Center has been used for retail and service providers since the construction of the center.   
 
The City amended Section 5.08 of the City’s Municipal Code regarding bingo operations in July, 
2011, in response to interest by the Blue Devils organization in operating a bingo center in Suisun 
City. 
 
In order to operate within the City, the applicant must obtain both a business license and a bingo 
license, and the facility in which they operate must have an approved conditional use permit.  
While it is appropriate to address land use concerns though conditions attached to the CUP, the 
Bingo License will also include conditions that address operations, including background checks 
and other measures designed to ensure a safe and legal environment.   

 
STAFF REPORT: Section 18.28.030 – Conditional Uses M. lists an amusement center as a use 
which requires a conditional use permit. The Blue Devils organization has applied for the CUP and 



intends to operate a “not for profit” bingo room to support local and regional charities. All 
activities will take place within the 9,100 square foot tenant space and no outside activities will be 
permitted. With the conditions of approval recommended, the operation is not anticipated to result 
in any environmental impacts to the neighbors. There are no hazardous or volatile materials or 
chemicals involved in the operation.   
 
During bingo operation, traffic is not anticipated to be unusual for this type of retail center. The 
parking area designated for the use of bingo patrons is more than adequate.  No routine truck or 
delivery traffic associated with this operation is anticipated.  
 
The project includes a small restaurant (e.g. Subway) in the northern part of the building, but the 
facility will not include a commercial kitchen. The applicant is planning that all-day food service 
will be provided. The applicant anticipates that “drop-in bingo” will be offered within the 
restaurant area.   
 
The applicant anticipates that restaurant maximum occupancy will be approximately 50 seats and 
the Session bingo assembly area maximum occupancy will be approximately 300 seats.  The 
applicant anticipates a daily maximum attendance of 100-200 in the first months of operation, 
growing throughout the year to about 300 and peaking at 330 on holidays. 
 
Since the recommended conditions of approval require the development and approval of a facility 
operations plan and a facilities security plan, staff is suggesting that the Planning Commission 
provide broad parameters for days and hours of operation.  For example, the Commission could 
approve a use permit that allowed the restaurant to operate up to 7 days per week, up to 12 hours 
per day.  This could then be more limited in the initial facilities operations plan, with an 
opportunity to observe the use and then add additional days/hours. As another example, the 
Commission could approve a use permit that allowed “session” bingo in the large assembly area up 
to a certain number of days per week, up to a maximum number of hours per week.  Then the 
initial facilities operations plan could be designed to allow more restricted operation on certain 
days and more expanded operation on other days. 
 
Staff has included all written communication from the applicant regarding project description.  
Since we are working with conflicting and/or vague information, staff has not been able to outline 
what we think the applicant is requesting.  We believe this is another good reason for the Planning 
Commission to provide broad parameters within the CUP, while allowing the Police Chief and 
Community Development Director to work with the applicant to develop and approve a facilities 
operations plan that will outline more specific initial hours, days, and types of activities.  
 
Required Findings 
 

1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance and the purposes of the zoning district in which the site is located 
since it is a commercial location that allows amusement uses with the approval of a CUP.  

 
2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it 

would be operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan in that the policies 



of the General Plan provide for commercial uses such as this within the City and the 
Downtown Waterfront designation.  

 
3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons 

residing or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to 
properties or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City since the 
use is contemplated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance, the location is within a commercial 
shopping center, and a variety of conditions are being imposed to address any concerns.  

 
4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 
 
5. The conditions of approval will be effective and efficient when placed on this use at this 

location because they address concerns raised by police, fire, and other city staff, prevent 
impacts on neighboring property, and provide for security and safety for patrons.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution PC12-___; Resolution of the City of Suisun 
City Planning Commission to Approve Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-009 for An 
Amusement Center (Blue Devils Bingo Center) within the Marina Shopping Center at 600 Marina Center 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution PC12-___; Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission to 
Approve Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-009 for An Amusement Center 
(Blue Devils Bingo Center) within the Marina Shopping Center at 600 Marina Center 
 

2. Project Description and Responses to Comments 
 
3. 600 Marina Center Space Plan 
 
4. Security Plan 
 
5. Marina Center Parking Exhibit 

 
 



  
RESOLUTION NO. PC12- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

APPROVING CONDIITONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION NO. UP11/12-009 FOR AN 
AMUSEMENT CENTER (BLUE DEVILS BINGO CENTER) WITHIN THE MARINA 

SHOPPING CENTER AT 600 MARINA CENTER 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at a regular meeting on July 24, 2012 did review 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 11/12-009 for an amusement center (Blue Devils Bingo 
Center) within the Marina Shopping Center at 600 Marina Center; 
 
 WHEREAS, the public notice was published in the Daily Republic on June 16, 2012; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the 
recommendations of said meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the applicant and members of the public were present to speak on the 
application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Conditional Use Permit application is exempt from the analysis required 
by the State of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 15301: Existing 
Facilities; and   
 
 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented at the Public Hearing by City Staff, the 
applicant, the public and Commissioners, the following Findings are hereby made:  

 
1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 

City’s Zoning Ordinance and the purposes of the zoning district in which the site is located 
since it is a commercial location that allows amusement uses with the approval of a CUP.  

 
2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it 

would be operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan in that the policies 
of the General Plan provide for commercial uses such as this within the City and the 
Downtown Waterfront designation.  

 
3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons 

residing or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to 
properties or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City since the 
use is contemplated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance, the location is within a commercial 
shopping center, and a variety of conditions are being imposed to address any concerns.  

 
4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 
 
5. The conditions of approval will be effective and efficient when placed on this use at this 

location because they address concerns raised by police, fire, and other city staff, prevent 
impacts on neighboring property, and provide for security and safety for patrons.  



 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 
Suisun City does hereby adopt Resolution PC12- ; A Resolution of the City of Suisun City 
Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-009 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 11/12-009 for an amusement center (Blue Devils Bingo 
Center) within the Marina Shopping Center at 600 Marina Center; subject to the following 
Conditions and all other Suisun City Codes and Ordinances, state and federal law: 
 
Conformity: 
1) This Conditional Use Permit (CUP) approval shall be exercised in conformance with the 

requirements of the City of Suisun City Municipal Code. 
 

2) The CUP is approved in conformance with the application and submittal materials provided. 
All exhibits are made a part of the CUP.  No deviation from the submitted documents, plans, 
maps, or any other exhibit shall be made without written approval from the Community 
Development Director or Planning Commission.  

 
3) Operation of the facility shall be in conformance with all federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations. 
 
4) This Use Permit is conditioned upon the issuance by the City of Suisun City of both a 

Business Tax License and a Bingo License for the proposed bingo operation; and, unless 
both are issued within 12 months of the date of Planning Commission approval, this Use 
Permit shall be deemed null and void.  
 

Prior to the Issuance of Building Permits: 
 

5) Building permit plans shall comply with all applicable building code requirements, including 
the Americans with Disabilities Act, and all mandates imposed by State and/or Federal 
governments and/or agencies in effect at the time of submittal for building permits. 
 

6) Any roof-mounted equipment shall be shown on building plans.  Equipment shall be painted 
to match the roof to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

 
7) A fire sprinkler system is required. Plans and a permit application shall be submitted for 

review and approval prior to installation.  A separate inspection for the fire protection system 
shall be required and completed prior to the final fire inspection. 
 

During Construction and Prior to the Issuance of Occupancy Permits: 
 

8) A building permit shall be obtained prior to initiation of any construction. 
 
9) Construction shall occur only within the hours permitted by the City of Suisun City 

Municipal Code. 
 
10) Exterior signage design shall be in conformance with an approved Marina Center Sign 

Program and shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for review and 
approval prior to installation. 



 
 

11) Fire Department- prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 
i) A facility evacuation plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Fire Chief (or his 

or her designee) and made a part of the CUP. 
ii) Applicant shall install an on-site Knox box. 
 

12) Police Department – prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 
i) A facility operation plan shall be submitted to and approved by both the Community 

Development Director and the Police Chief (or their designees) and made a part of the 
CUP. Minor modifications may be approved by mutual agreement from time to time.  
Such facility operation plan shall be consistent with the floor plan submitted as an 
exhibit to the CUP application. 

ii) A facility security plan shall be submitted to and approved by both the Community 
Development Director and the Police Chief (or their designees) and made a part of the 
CUP. Minor modifications may be approved by mutual agreement from time to time.  
Such facility security plan shall be consistent with the floor plan submitted as an 
exhibit to the CUP application and with all building plans submitted.  At a minimum, 
security shall include: 
(1) The presence of a uniformed security guard during Session Bingo; 
(2) Outdoor lighting sufficient to provide safe ingress and egress from the building, 

as well as access to the parking area and outdoor smoking area shall be provided. 
(3) Security cameras, equal to or better than the example included as part of 

applicant’s submittal materials, shall be mounted in a manner such that 
unobstructed facial views and views of all monetary transactions at the following 
locations are provided: 
(a) Each entrance/exit. 
(b) Each cashier counter. 
(c) Any safe or vault. 
(d) Any ATM. 

iii) In the event of excessive calls for service or complaints regarding the facility, the 
Police Department shall notify the Community Development Director.  After notice 
and hearing, Planning Commission may review, modify, and/or revoke the CUP. 
 

Operation: 
13) No alcoholic beverages shall be sold, gifted, or consumed on the premises. 
 
14) An outdoor smoking area, approved by the Community Development Director, Fire Chief, 

and Police Chief (or their designees), shall be provided and maintained in an attractive and 
functional manner. 

 
15) The Use Permit does not include approval for a commercial kitchen. All food service shall 

conform to Solano County Health Department regulations.   
 
16) Parking shall be in conformance with the parking plan submitted and which is made a part of 

this CUP. 
 
17) No outdoor activities shall be permitted.  

 



 
 

Review:  
18) An annual review by Planning Commission of the CUP is required and shall be conducted in 

compliance with the provisions of Chapter 18.66.  Additional review by the Planning 
Commission may be required in the event the facility fails to conform to the conditions of 
approval or complaints regarding the facility operation are received. 
 

The forgoing motion was made by Commissioner ____ and seconded by Commissioner 
____ and carried by the folowing vote:  

 
AYES: Commissioners:  _______ 
NOES: Commissioners:  _______ 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  _______ 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: _______ 
 
WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 24th day of July 2012 
 
 
 

Anita Skinner 
      Commission Secretary 























���������	

�


�
�	

���

��

����������

��

�������������

��

����������

��

���	
����



�

���	
�������






	
���

��

�������

��

��  ������	

�!

����

��



!�"
���#�$

���"
��#�$

���"
�$

���"

��#�$

���%���

���%��

���%����

���%��

���%�


���%��

���%�
�


���%��

!�

!�


��


��

��

�����
��	�
���
����

�
�


�
��

�
��	��
�

�����
�
�
�	��	��
���



 
 

supply room 
106 

ticket sales 
107 

      occ:  2 

caller station 
108   occ:  1 

flash sales 
109 
occ:  2 

men's 
105 

63 

women's 
103 

 

 
assemby hall 

111 
occ:  358 

 
 
occ:  4 

staff room 
101 

occ:  2 

172 

entry 
102 

occ:  88 

 
assemby 2 

110 
occ:  121 

172  172  63 

schematic floor plan 
Marina Center - Building 600 

 
 
 
0  5  10  25 





12v DC / 24v AC

AP-631D







PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner 
REVIEWED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  July 24, 2012 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING: Resolution PC12-___; A 
Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Suisun City Rescinding Conditional Use Permit 
UP09/10-004 for the Expansion of the Days Out Program at 74/76 Marina Center and Approving 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-010 for the relocation of the Days Out Day Program to 
70/72 Marina Center.  
 
APPLICANT: Troy Richard 
   P.O. Box 3406 
   Fairfield, CA 94533 
 
OWNER:   Pellarin Enterprises 
   1520 Main Street 
   Redwood City, CA 94063 
 

SITE DATA: 
 (1) General Plan/Specific Plan: Downtown Waterfront (DW)/General Commercial (GC) 
 (2) Project Configuration: 2,400 square foot tenant space within Marina Shopping Center  
 (3) Surrounding Land Use: 
      North- Vacant (CS) 

South- Residential (RL) 
West- Mobile Home Park (GC) 
East- Vacant (GC) 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: This project is categorically exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15301, Existing Facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND: In September 2007, the Planning Commission approved a resolution granting the 
original Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the Days Out facility. In November 2009, the Planning 
Commission approved an expansion of the use in the shopping center and thus a modification to the 
existing CUP. The property owner and applicant contacted staff regarding the relocation of the Days Out 
facility to 70/72 Marina Center, which is one suite closer to Highway 12.  Since CUP’s “run with the 
land”, Staff concluded that a new application must be filed and considered by the Planning Commission. 

 
STAFF REPORT: The Suisun City Zoning Ordinance requires that a facility/use such as the 
proposed Days Out facility must submit a CUP application for consideration by the Planning 
Commission at a public hearing. As stated in the background section of this report (above), the Planning 
Commission has approved a CUP, as well as a modification to the CUP, within the Marina Shopping 
Center in the past. The proposed use is planned to occupy the same floor area (2,400 square feet) that 
was occupied in their prior location (74/76 Marina Center). 



Project Description: 
The applicant provided a brief write-up with the subject application and also referred to the project 
description that was included with the November 2009 application submittal. This information remains 
accurate regarding how the use currently operates. Additionally, the project description provided 
information on the purpose, goals, and program philosophies of Days Out. Staff has included the 
information provided by the applicant below: 

 
Goals and Purpose: 
The basic goals and purpose of Days Out is to elevate each consumer’s life skills 
according to their abilities, as well as modifying and diminishing behavior problems and 
occurrences. To accomplish this goal, we will be balancing an array of skill areas. Some 
examples are academics, self-care, physical fitness, volunteering, socialization, behavior 
modification, independent living, community integration, and recreational independence (e.g. 
constructive use of leisure time). By combining these services with a healthy learning 
environment, qualified staff, and by complying with Title 17, we are confident that the goal of 
this program will be met. 
 
Hours of Operation: 
-Monday thru Friday 
-Closed holidays 
-8am until 4pm 
 
Environmental Response: 
This is an existing use at 74/76 Marina Center. Our program at this new location, in the same 
building, will hold a maximum of thirty clients and twelve staff at any time. There would be no 
excessive or out of the ordinary odors, loud noise, dust or glare produced by our use of the 
building and there would also not be any manufacturing or use of hazardous or volatile materials 
or chemicals. 
 
The vehicle traffic would of course be a client drop-off in the morning and pick up in the 
afternoon. During the day the clients will go out on various outings in the community. We would 
utilize the already established parking area. 

 
Required Findings and Evidence 
 
In order for the Planning Commission to approve the Conditional Use Permit the following findings must 
be made: 
 

1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance and the purposes of the zoning district in which the site is located. While the 
City strongly encourages the use of all commercial sites in the City for retail commercial and 
related uses, given that the use has been operational in this Center and is operating without any 
negative impacts on adjacent uses, staff believes that the relocation is appropriate. 

 
2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it would be 

operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan in that the policies of the General 



Plan provide for a mixture of commercial uses and encourage uses that meet the needs of the 
community. 

 
3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing 

or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to properties or 
improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City since activity will be limited at 
the site to specific periods of time and no environmental impacts will result from the use. 

 
4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities because the suite already exists and 
only minor tenant improvements will occur at this location. 

 
5. The conditions of approval will be effective and efficient when placed on this use at this location 

because they address all concerns, including limiting size and placement of advertising to ensure 
consistency with city policies. 
 

Note: The City has observed that Days Out has operated without incident for almost five years.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution PC12-___; A Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Suisun City Rescinding Conditional Use Permit UP09/10-004 for the 
Expansion of the Days Out Program at 74/76 Marina Center and Approving Conditional Use Permit 
Application No. UP11/12-010 for the relocation of the Days Out Day Program to 70/72 Marina Center.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution PC12-___; A Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Suisun City 
Rescinding Conditional Use Permit UP09/10-004 for the Expansion of the Days Out Program 
at 74/76 Marina Center and Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-010 
for the relocation of the Days Out Day Program to 70/72 Marina Center.  
 

2. “Days Out Day Program Relocation”-Submitted 6/25/12  
 

3. “Days Out Project Description”-Submitted as part of UP09/10-004 (November 18, 2009) 
 
4. 70/72 Marina Center Plans 



RESOLUTION NO. PC12- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  
RESCINDING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT UP 09/10-004 AT 74/76 MARINA 

CENTER ANDAPPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION NO. 
UP11/12-010 FOR THE RELOCATION OF THE DAYS OUT DAY PROGRAM TO 70/72 

MARINA CENTER 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at a regular meeting on July 24, 2012 did review 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 11/12-010 Rescinding Conditional Use Permit UP09/10-
004 at 74/76 Marina Center and Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-010 
for the relocation of the Days Out Day Program to 70/72 Marina Center; 
 
 WHEREAS, the public notice was published in the Daily Republic on July 14, 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the recommendations of 
said meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the applicant and members of the public were present to speak on the application; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Conditional Use Permit application is exempt from the analysis required by the 
State of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 15301: Existing Facilities; and   
 
 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented at the Public Hearing by City Staff, the applicant, the 
public, and Commissioners, the following Findings are hereby made:  

 
In order for the Planning Commission to approve the conditional use permit the following findings must be 
made: 

1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance and the purposes of the zoning district in which the site is located. 
While the City strongly encourages the use of all commercial sites in the City for retail 
commercial and related uses, given that the use has been operational in this Center and is 
operating without any negative impacts on adjacent uses, staff believes that the relocation is 
appropriate. 

 
2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it 

would be operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan in that the policies 
of the General Plan provide for a mixture of commercial uses and encourage uses that meet 
the needs of the community. 

 
3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons 

residing or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to 
properties or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City since 
activity will be limited at the site to specific periods of time and no environmental impacts 
will result from the use. 

 
4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities because the suite already exists 
and only minor tenant improvements will occur at this location. 

 



 
 

5. The conditions of approval will be effective and efficient when placed on this use at this 
location because they address all concerns, including limiting size and placement of 
advertising to ensure consistency with city policies. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 
Suisun City does hereby adopt Resolution PC12- ; Conditional Use Permit Application No. 11/12-
010 Rescinding Conditional Use Permit UP09/10-004 at 74/76 Marina Center and Approving 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-010 for the relocation of the Days Out Day 
Program to 70/72 Marina Center; subject to the following Conditions and all other Suisun City 
Codes and Ordinances, state and federal law: 
 

1. This Use Permit approval shall be exercised in conformance with the requirements of the 
City of Suisun City Municipal Code. 
 

2. The Use Permit is approved in conformance with the application and submittal materials 
provided.  No deviation from the submitted documents, plans, maps, or any other exhibit 
shall be made without written approval from the Community Development Director or 
Planning Commission.  

 
3. Operation of the facility shall be in conformance with all federal, state, and local laws 

and regulations. 
 

4. Building permit plans shall comply with all applicable building code requirements, 
including the Americans with Disabilities Act, and all State- and Federally-mandated 
requirements in effect at the time of submittal for building permits. 
 

5. Exterior signage design shall be in conformance with an approved Marina Center Sign 
Program the submitted to the Community Development Director for review and approval 
prior to installation. 
 

6. The operator shall be responsible to ensure that clients do not obstruct or affect 
neighboring uses. 
 

7. The use shall be operated consistent with all licensing requirements and regulations of the 
State Department of Social Services. 
 

8. If complaints are received or the operator is not in compliance with the above conditions 
or is creating a nuisance in the nearby area, the operator may be cited, and the permit may 
be subject to reconsideration and/or revocation. 

 
The forgoing motion was made by Commissioner ____ and seconded by Commissioner ____ and 

carried by the folowing vote:  
 

AYES: Commissioners:  _______ 
NOES: Commissioners:  _______ 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  _______ 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: _______ 
 



 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 24th day of July 2012 
 
 
 

Anita Skinner 
      Commission Secretary 






































	Agenda
	Minutes
	Blue Devils Bingo Center
	Days Out Program

